












































33.

34,

35.

refusal to direct cost pass-through will have a fair opportunity to obtain allowances or to

recover the cost of allowances necessary to operate.

Indeck does not oppose addressing greenhouse gas emissions through a properly
designed, non-discriminatory national program. Indeck has made repeated reasonable
attempts to resolve the issue imposed by a discriminatory combination of long term
contract dictated by the PSC and the current RGGI regulations imposed by DEC and
NYSERDA. However, none of these agencies, despite being repeatedly alerted to the
fact that the RGGI regulations unfairly prevent Indeck from the opportunity to recover
the allowance cost without any reason, has been willing to make simple adjustments to
the regulations to address their disproportionate impact on Indeck. Accordingly, Indeck

is forced to bring this action to obtain redress.

CLAIMS FOR RELIEF
FIRST CLAIM FOR RELIEF
THE NEW YORK RGGI PROGRAM IS ULTRA VIRES

Plaintiff realleges and incorporates herein the allegations contained in paragraphs 1

through 33 of this joint Petition and Complaint as if set forth fully herein.

Article II of the State Constitution vests the Senate and the Assembly with the legislative
power of the State, while Article IV vests the executive power in the Governor and article
VI vests the court system with the judicial power. The New York Court of Appeals has
held that these separate grants of power to each of the coordinate branches of government
imply that each branch is to exercise power within a given sphere of authority, and that
the separation of powers requires that the Legislature make the critical policy decisions,

while the executive branch's responsibility is to implement those policies.
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36.

The Governor of New York executed the RGGI MOU without the consent or
authorization of the New York Legislature, and has never obtained the consent or
authorization of the New York Legislature to the policies and requirements set forth in
the RGGI MOU or in the Model Rules, regulations or other provisions of RGGI. At the
time of the execution of the MOU the State Legislature had not established, and at no
time since the execution of the RGGI MOU has the New York Legislature established, a
state policy that would: (1) regulate emissions of greenhouse gases from electric
generation facilities; (ii) require or allow the use of a tradable allowance program to
regulate emissions of greenhouse gases from electric generation facilities; (iii) require or
allow DEC to issue allowances to NYSERDA; (iv) require or allow NYSERDA to sell
allowances through a centralized auction; (v) require or allow NYSERDA to receive the
proceeds of an auction of allowances; or (vi) require or allow NYSERDA to disburse the
proceeds received as a result of a sale of allowances. The entry by the then Governor into
the RGGI Compact, the determination under RGGI to address issues of regulating
greenhouse gases, through a cap and trade program and the sale of allowances, and the
manner in which proceeds of allowance sales would be received and disbursed by the
State, necessarily make fundamental policy choices that epitomize “legislative power.”
Decisions involving licensing, taxation and the promulgation of regulations and programs
involving the expenditure of State funds require a balancing of differing interests, a task
the multimember, representative Legislature is entrusted to perform under New York’s
constitutional structure. The RGGI program is in violation of the separation of powers’
established by the New York Constitution, is beyond the lawful power of the Governor

and the agencies (i.e., is ultra vires), and is without proper basis in the laws of New York.
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37.

38.

39.

40.

41.

New York agencies may only act in accordance with the authority granted to them and
cannot promulgate rules, or create taxes or fees that are not contemplated or authorized

by the Legislature.

Netither DEC nor NYSERDA has statutory authority to control CO, admissions through a
cap and trade program, to regulate the interstate trading of allowances on an auction

market, or to impose and operate a revenue program related to allowances.

NYSERDA, a public benefit corporation under Article 8, title 9 of the New York State
Public Authorities Law, was created by the New York State Legislature with “specific
powers.” PAL § 1850, et. seq. NYSERDA’s governing statutes make no reference to
any authority that allows NYSERDA to administer or participate in an auction of CO,

allowances.

Under the State Administrative Procedure Act, CO; allowances under RGGI are
considered licenses or permits. SAPA § 102(4). NYSERDA does not have statutory
authority to engage in licensing of any kind and is only authorized to sell real and
personal property RGGI regulations specifically state that the allowances are
“authorizations to emit” and are not a property or property right. Licensing cannot be
considered an implied power as it is not essential to the purpose for which NYSERDA

was created.

DEC is also not authorized by statute to transfer emission permits to NYSERDA for sale.
DEC’s authorizing regulations consider the RGGI allowances as “minor permits”

requiring various mandatory procedures. 6 NYCRR § 621(g)(2); ECL § 70-0111. The
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42.

43.

current RGGI regulations do not meet those requirements either procedurally or

substantively.

By creating the allowance auction accounts and selling allowances, receiving and then
disbursing the proceeds of the allowance auction, all without any authorization from the
New York Legislature and without an appropriation of the funds received, NYSERDA
and DEC have created a tax and revenue program which has not been authorized by the

New York State Legislature.

The regulations promulgated by NYSERDA and DEC, the participation of DEC and
NYSERDA in the issuance and sale of allowances, the transfer by NYSERDA of
allowances to a centralized auction, the receipt of NYSERDA of revenues from the
auction of allowances, and the disbursement of proceeds of allowance auctions by

NYSERDA are all ultra vires, without lawful authority, and in violation of law.

SECOND CLAIM FOR RELIEF

THE NEW YORK RGGI PROGRAM IMPOSES AN IMPERMISSIBLE AGENCY TAX

44,

45.

NOT AUTHORIZED BY THE STATE LEGISLATURE

Plaintiff realleges and incorporates herein the allegations contained in paragraphs 1

through 43 of this joint Petition and Complaint as if set forth fully herein.

The current RGGI provisions promulgated by DEC and NYSERDA create an
unconstitutional administrative tax under the New York Constitution. In New York, taxes
can only be created by the State Legislature. State agencies like DEC and public benefit
corporations like NYSERDA may not create, impose or establish a tax, nor arrogate to

themselves State revenues.
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46.  The RGGI auction generates hundreds of millions of dollars of revenue based on a
market clearing price, unrelated to any costs of administration and enforcement. The

program was created by executive agency rules, without State legislation.

47.  The market clearing price is determined by the market and is not tied to administrative or
enforcement costs, which NYSERDA estimates will only be 10% of the revenues
generated in the auction. The revenues generated, estimated to be close to $144 million
dollars annually and likely to increase, are to be collected by NYSERDA and distributed

at NYSERDA’s sole discretion.

48.  Neither NYSERDA nor DEC is authorized by the Legislature to create a tax that
generates annual revenues that exceed administrative costs. The generation of revenue
under RGGI creates an impermissible administrative taxation regime in violation of the

New York State Constitution, and is in violation of law.

THIRD CLAIM FOR RELIEF
THE NEW YORK RGGI PROGRAM, AS IMPLEMENTED, IS ARBITRARY AND
CAPRICIOUS

49.  Plaintiff realleges and incorporates herein the allegations contained in paragraphs 1

through 48 of this joint Petition and Complaint as if set forth fully herein.

50.  DEC acted arbitrarily by determining that the allocation of allowances be accomplished
by auction rather than by other means, and in a manner which imposes costs unrelated to
compliance and enforcement. In particular, DEC acted arbitrarily by surrendering its
discretion in favor of adherence to a model rule, ignored substantial issues and evidence

in the record, and otherwise promulgated rules that are unreasonable.
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51.

52.

53.

DEC acted arbitrarily by determining to impose costs on facilities like Indeck, without a

mechanism to assure cost recovery as is generally required and contemplated by RGGI.

DEC and NYSERDA acted arbitrarily by adopting the RGGI MOU and Model Rule
through an impermissible delegation of authority, surrendering their discretion to an

interstate group that promulgated the RGGI MOU and Model Rule.

DEC, NYSERDA and PSC acted without sound basis in reason and without regard to
fact, including the impact of the auction process of QFs operating under fixed price

contracts, when it adopted the RGGI Model Rule.

FOURTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF

PURPA AND FERC REGULATIONS PREEMPT INCONSISTENT REGULATIONS

54.

55.

56.

57.

Plaintiff realleges and incorporates herein the allegations contained in paragraphs 1

through 53 of this joint Petition and Complaint as if set forth fully herein.

Pursuant to PURPA Section 210(f), New York State is required properly to implement
PURPA via the New York State agency or agencies having regulatory authority over

electrical utilities. 16 U.S.C. § 824a-3(f).

DEC’s, NYSERDA’s and PSC’s regulations implementing RGGI are inconsistent with
PURPA and FERC’s policy and practice of ensuring that QFs receive the full avoided

cost.

New York State’s failure to ensure that utilities pay QFs for energy at a rate equal to the
utitities’ full avoided cost represents a fatlure to comply with the Federal regulations

implementing PURPA.
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58.

59.

60.

6l.

62.

63.

State regulations inconsistent with the terms, policies and practices of PURPA and their
implementing regulations, must yield to the Federal requirements. DEC’s, NYSERDA’s
and PSC’s RGGI regulations impose price terms that are preempted by Federal law and

regulation.

FIFTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF

THE RGGI MOU IS AN IMPERMISSIBLE AGREEMENT OF THE STATES IN

VIOLATION OF THE COMPACT CLAUSE OF THE UNITED STATES
CONSTITUTION

Plaintiff realleges and incorporates herein the allegations contained in paragraphs 1

through 58 of this joint Petition and Complaint as if set forth fully herein.

The RGGI MOU is an impermissible compact among ten Northeastern States in violation
of the United States Constitution Compact Clause. U.S. Const., Art. 1, §10, cl. 3.
Although the MOU is an agreement among States, it has never been approved by

Congress.

The RGGI MOU among the ten Compact States impermissibly enlarges the Compact
States’ political influence over environmental issues, specifically the regulation of

greenhouse gases, without the express authorization of the United States Congress.

The RGGI MOU creates incentives for the increase of greenhouse gas emissions in states
outside of the RGGI area, and thus interferes with Federal authority regarding interstate

effects of emissions of pollutants.

Congress has the power to regulate emissions and establish interstate emission limits,
which it has expressly chosen not to do. RGGI’s supplemental regulations are stricter

than Federal regulations promulgated by the United States Environmental Protection
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64.

65.

66.

67.

Agency and thus, impermissibly encroach on Federal supremacy and interfere with the
Federal interest in climate policy and Federal interest in regulating a national and

international pollutant.

SIXTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
NEW YORK’S IMPLEMENTATION OF THE RGGI PROGRAM VIOLATES
INDECK’S DUE PROCESS AND EQUAL PROTECTION RIGHTS

Plaintiff realleges and incorporates herein the allegations contained in paragraphs 1

through 63 of this joint Petition and Complaint as if set forth fully herein.

Indeck has been impermissibly adversely affected by DEC, NYSERDA and PSC’s
decision to participate in RGGI and implementation of regulations that fail to allow
Indeck to recover costs imposed by such regulations. Moreover, Indeck has been
impermissibly adversely affected by the same agencies’ refusal to direct that Indeck have

a fair opportunity to recover such costs.

PSC, through regulation and approval of the long term contract approved in 1990
between Indeck and Con Edison, had a legal obligation to insure that Indeck, as a QF,
would recover the full avoided cost payment for power pursuant to PURPA and the
FERC regulations promulgated thereunder. Indeck relied on such obligation when

entering into the contract with Con Edison.

New York State’s adoption of RGGI, combined the implementation of their regulations
under the RGGI cap and trade program by DEC and NYSERDA, effectively bars Indeck

from recovering the full avoided costs for power it produces.
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68.

69.

70.

71.

DEC, NYSERDA and PSC, through the RGGI regulations, allow the costs of the
allowance program to be passed through to all customers for all entities except Indeck
and several other qualifying facilities subject to long term fixed price contracts. By
requiring Indeck to incur the allowance program cost without assuring Indeck has a fair
opportunity to recover the costs they have imposed, DEC, NYSERDA and PSC have
impermissibly adversely affected Indeck in violation of Indeck’s due process rights under

the United States Constitution.

DEC, NYSERDA and PSC have impermissibly treated Indeck differently from other
similarly situated pollutant sources in violation of 42 U.S.C. § 1983 and Indeck’s Equal

Protection rights under the United States Constitution.

DEC, NYSERDA and PSC have knowingly refused to create a mechanism to allow
Indeck the opportunity to recover the RGGI program’s allowance costs, while allowing
other similarly situated pollutant sources the opportunity to recover the avoided costs of

producing electricity.

This unfair treatment and discrimination, which has repeatedly been brought to the
attention of DEC, NYSERDA and PSC, is arbitrary, capricious and an abuse of

discretion.

WHEREFORE Indeck requests that this honorable Court grant it Declaratory and

Injunctive Relief, finding and determining that:

1. The entry into the RGGI program without the consent or approval of the State

Legislature was ultra vires, unlawful and without effect.
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2. The promulgation of the RGGI regulations by DEC and NYSERDA was ultra
vires, in excess of lawful authority and those regulations are void.

3. The promulgation of the RGGI regulations by DEC and NYSERDA have
created an unlawful tax, in violation of law, in excess of lawful authority, and those regulations
are void.

4. The promulgation of the RGGI regulations by DEC and NYSERDA i1s
arbitrary, capricious, in violation of lawful authority, and those regulations are void.

5. The RGGI MOU is a multistate compact which has not been authorized by the
United States Congress and is void under the Compact Clause of the United States Constitution.

6. The RGGI regulations as promulgated by DEC and NYSERDA, in light of
PSC’s refusal to mandate a fair opportunity to recover Indeck’s costs, violate PURPA.

7. The RGGI regulations as promulgated by DEC and NYSERDA, in light of
PSC’s refusal to mandate a fair opportunity to recover Indeck’s costs, are in violation of Indeck’s
rights to due process of law under the United States Constitution and the New York State
Constitution, and unlawfully and improperly discriminate against Indeck, and are void.

8. Enjoining the enforcement by DEC of its RGGI regulations against Indeck,
and enjoining the participation of DEC, NYSERDA and New York state in the RGGI auction
programs.

And that the Court grant such other, further or additional relief as justice requires.
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Dated: January 29, 2009 By:

New York, New York

e iegserger
PauL, HASTINGS, JANOFSKY & WALKER LLP
75 East 55th Street
New York, NY 10022-3205
(212) 318-6000

Charles A. Patrizia

Elizabeth A. Stevens

PauL, HASTINGS, JANOFSKY & WALKER LLP
875 15th Street NW

Washington, DC 20005

(202) 551-1700

Counsel for Plaintiff
Indeck Corporation
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